
In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, persons with physical limitations that may tend to restrict access to or participation in this meeting 
should contact the County Administrator’s office (231-779-9453) at least twelve (12) hours prior to the scheduled start of the meeting. 
 

 
Wexford County 

 
 

Mike Bengelink, Chair 
NOTICE OF MEETING 

The Human Resources/Public Safety Committee of the Wexford County Board of Commissioners will 
hold a regular meeting on Tuesday, August 25, 2020 beginning at 4:00 p.m. in the Commissioner’s 
Room, Third Floor, 437 E. Division St., Cadillac, Michigan. 

 
 

TENTATIVE AGENDA 

A. CALL TO ORDER  
B. ROLL CALL 
C. ADDITIONS / DELETIONS TO THE AGENDA 
D. APPROVAL OF THE AGENDA  
E. APPROVAL OF THE JULY 28, 2020 REGULAR MEETING MINUTES ......................... 1 
F. PUBLIC COMMENTS 

The Committee welcomes all public input.  
G. AGENDA ITEMS 

1. Sheriff’s Office Monthly Report (Sheriff/Undersheriff – July 2020)  .......................................... 4 
2. North Flight Monthly Update (J. Sopha – July 2020) ........................................................ 10 
3. Emergency Management Monthly Report (T. Baker – July 2020) .................................... 11 
4. Central Dispatch Monthly Report (D. Alworden – July 2020) ............................................. 12 
5. Veterans Services Monthly Report (K. Myers – July 2020) .............................................. 14 
6. Employee Recognition ......................................................................................... 15 
7. Appointment to the Veterans Services Committee ............................................... 16 
8. Flu Immunizations ................................................................................................ 17 
9. Update on Part-time Employee Wage Scale 

H. CORRESPONDENCE  
1. Medical Examiner’s Office Report (L. Kaspriak – July 2020)  ............................................ 18  

I. PUBLIC COMMENTS 
J. ADMINISTRATOR’S COMMENTS   
K. COMMITTEE COMMENTS  
L. CHAIR COMMENTS 
M. ADJOURN  

HUMAN RESOURCES/PUBLIC SAFETY COMMITTEE 



WEXFORD COUNTY 
HUMAN RESOURCES/PUBLIC SAFETY COMMITTEE 

REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 
JULY 28, 2020 

The meeting was called to order by Commissioner Taylor at 4:00 p.m. in the Commissioner’s Room 
of the Courthouse, 437 E. Division, Cadillac, Michigan.  

Members Present:  Michael Bush, Brian Potter and Gary Taylor 
Absent: Michael Bengelink 
Also Present: Jami Bigger, Executive Assistant/HR Coordinator; Kathy Cline, Veterans 

Service Officer; Janet Koch, Administrator; Kristi Nottingham, Treasurer; 
Alaina Nyman, Clerk; Joe Porterfield, Equalization Director; Jason Sopha, 
Grounds Operation Coordinator, North Flight; Trent Taylor, Sheriff 

ADDITIONS OR DELETIONS TO THE AGENDA 
None.  

APPROVAL OF THE AGENDA 
A motion was made by Bush and supported by Potter to approve the Agenda. A vote was called. 
All in favor.  

APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
A motion was made by Potter and supported by Bush to approve the June 23, 2020, Regular 
Meeting Minutes, as presented.  A vote was called all in favor.  

PUBLIC COMMENTS 
None.  

AGENDA ITEMS 
G.1. Sheriff’s Office Monthly Report (June 2020)
Sheriff Taylor reported:

• Travis Baker, Emergency Management Coordinator, did an outstanding job preparing for the
rally in the park that took place in June. Additional staff from the Sheriff’s Office, Michigan
State Police, Traverse City Narcotics Team, and the fire departments assisted the Cadillac
Police Department at the rally. Also onsite was the Sheriff, Undersheriff, Chair and Vice
Chair of the Board.

• The current headcount at the jail is 43. The segregation cells are currently full.
• This year there has been 14 overdoses; in June alone, there were eight overdoses, four of

those resulted in death.
• Sheriff’s Office staff was exposed to a lot in June including a homicide, shooting, and a

stabbing. Sheriff Taylor stated the Dispatcher and Deputy that dealt with the homicide did a
great job.

• A conditional offer has been given to a new Deputy. There is one Deputy position open
currently and one Corrections Officer. They are waiting to fill the Corrections Officer
position until after it has been approved by the grant.

• One of the cars for the detective has came in. They are still waiting on the two new patrol
cars.

DRAFT

1



Human Resource/Public Safety Meeting 
July 28, 2020 

            Page 2 of 3 

G.2. North Flight Monthly Update (June 2020)
Jason Sopha, Grounds Operation Coordinator, North Flight reported:

• The average response times for the month of June were good.
• There were 261 calls for service, three intercepts with Mesick Rescue and four MEI’s, medical

examiner investigations.
• North Flight recently filled two vacancies and currently has two vacant positions left to fill.
• Three new ambulances have been requested to replace older units.

Mr. Sopha also informed the committee he will be the person presenting to the committee going 
forward.  

G.3. Emergency Management Monthly Report (June 2020)
Travis Baker, Emergency Management Coordinator, was unavailable to attend the meeting. A report
was provided in the packet.

G.4. Central Dispatch Monthly Report (June 2020)
Duane Alworden, Central Dispatch Director, was unavailable to attend the meeting. A report was
provided in the packet.

G.5. Veterans Services Monthly Report (June 2020)
Ms. Kathy Cline, Veteran Service Officer, informed the committee in-office visits have resumed by
appointment only. In June, they had 22 office visits and 277 calls. One veteran received emergency
assistance and one was denied because they were not a resident of Wexford County.

Ms. Cline also reported: 
• The MVAA, Michigan Veterans Affairs Agency, grant has been amended and approved by

the State.
• Food assistance is available for veterans through Meijer Food vouchers.
• The office received four WWII prints that they had framed and hung in the office.
• Commissioner Taylor continues to work on gathering information for the WWII memorial

from families and friends of veterans killed in action.

Ms. Cline completed her federal training and is now federally accredited. The committee 
congratulated her on the accomplishment.  

G.6. Employee Recognition
A motion was made by Bush and supported by Potter to present the certificates of appreciation
to Matthew Howell, Norma Kijorski and Christine Wright at the next BOC meeting. A vote
was called. All in favor.

G.7. Acceptance of Resignation from the Veterans Services Committee
A motion was made by Potter and supported by Bush to forward a recommendation to the full
board to accept the resignation of Susan Marcum from the Veterans Services Committee. A
vote was called. All in favor.

DRAFT

2



Human Resource/Public Safety Meeting 
July 28, 2020 

            Page 3 of 3 

G.8 Veteran Service Officer Classification
A motion was made by Bush and supported by Potter to approve the Veterans Services
Committee recommendation to appoint the Veteran Service Officer as Co-Director and classify
the position as M2 effective at the start of the next pay period on August 3, 2020.

Joe Porterfield explained this topic was initially presented to the Finance Committee, which 
concluded the position should fit into the County wage scale. Mr. Porterfield noted this is a part-time 
position.  

A vote was called. All in favor. 

CORRESPONDENCE 
None. 

PUBLIC COMMENTS 
None.  

ADMINISTRATOR’S COMMENTS 
Ms. Koch commented information received from our insurance providers stated that costs will 
increase next year. The increase is unknown at this point.  

She also noted she will be working on wage scales for part-time employees. 

COMMITTEE COMMENTS 
None.  

CHAIR COMMENTS 
None. 

ADJOURNMENT 
A motion was made by Potter and supported by Bush to adjourn at 4:18 p.m. A vote was called. 
All in favor.  

___________________________________ _________________________________ 
Gary Taylor, Acting HR/PS Comm. Chair Jami Bigger, Recording Secretary  

DRAFT

3



• OFFICE OF THE SHERIFF• WEXFORD COUNTY

Trent J Taylor 
Sheriff 

Richard R. Doehring 

Undersheriff 

Wexford County 

Office of the Sheriff 

Monthly Report 

July 

2020 

1015 Lincoln St.• Cadillac, Michigan 49601 • 231-779-9216 • FAX: 231-779-0218 
www.wexfordsheriff.org 4



5



6



7



8



9



Response Times July Response Times Jan through July
Township Requests Time Township Requests Time

Antioch 0 0 Antioch 0 0
Boon 2 18.3 Boon 15 19.61
Cadillac 163 4.07 Cadillac 931 4.31
Cedar Creek 12 8.97 Cedar Creek 82 8.02
Cherry Grove 14 9 Cherry Grove 101 11.15
Clam Lake 22 6.41 Clam Lake 138 6.84
Colfax 6 11.87 Colfax 28 12.39
Greenwood 7 10.43 Greenwood 28 11.06
Hanover 0 0 Hanover 0 0
Haring 25 8.51 Haring 228 6.69
Henderson 1 18.75 Henderson 6 14.51
Liberty 5 8.58 Liberty 34 10.04
Manton 15 3.95 Manton 75 5.82
Selma 19 9.95 Selma 107 11.41
Slagle 0 0 Slagle 0 0
South Branch 5 22.72 South Branch 53 21.26
Springville 0 0 Springville 0 0
Total Requests 296 Total Requests 1826
Average Response 6.15 Average Response 6.24

(5) Intercepts with Mesick Rescue
(3) DOA / MEI (2) Haring Township, (1) City of Cadillac

10



Wexford County Emergency 
Management Report 

July 2020 

- Attended several meetings with Lansing and other EM’s in the state via
Zoom.

- Attended Region 7 Homeland Security Planning board meeting, via
Zoom.

- County Security Meeting via Zoom
- Tested all panic buttons in the courthouse, confirm in working order

and location.
- Submitted EMPG paperwork:
- EMD-065 Quarterly Training and Exercise Report on 7/10
- EMD-007 Quarterly Expense report on 7/20

- End of year reports will be due 10/10/20, will be working on these
reports for final submittal.

Travis Baker 08/20/2020 

G.3.

11



Wexford County 

Central Dispatch 

Public Safety 
Report 

          July 2020 

G.4.

12



CENTRAL DISPATCH 

Total LEIN Responses   14559 

CAD GENERATED:  INCIDENTS: 
Sheriff Department  727 
Animal Control   57 
Michigan State Police    564 
Cadillac Police Department     1017 
Manton Police Department    21 
EMS Calls 677 
Fire Calls   155 
Support Services Calls    74 
Central Dispatch 153 
911 Hang up/Text Back          360 

TOTAL CALLS FOR SERVICE    3805 

TELEPHONE CALLS RECEIVED:  
9-1-1 calls   1852 
Administrative Calls  4688 
TOTAL CALLS RECEIVED: 6540 

13



Wexford County Veterans Services 
401 N. Lake Street, Cadillac, 111 49601 

231-775-6654

12 August, 2020 

Kent Myers, Director 

Kathy Cline, Co-Director 

Veterans Services Month{y Revort 

July 2020 Overview 
• Veterans in office visits-33
• Logged phone contacts-313
• Veterans who received emergency assistance - 1
• Veterans ineligible/denied for emergency assistance• 0
• County Burial benefits and letters have been initiated -1

During the month of July, Veterans Services continued in office visits by appointment and 
phone contact VSO Kathy Cline successfully completed National Accreditation Training 
with NACVSO. Our services continue to assist those in need, veterans with questions or 
concerns regarding Federal, State and County benefits. 
The Wexford County Veterans Committee is working on 2021 Michigan Veterans Affairs 
Agency (MVAA) grant. The level of funding will of course determine the initiatives, and we 
currently anticipate $50,000 of state support for fiscal year 2021, Meijer Food vouchers are 
still available to veterans and their families, and emergency assistance applications through 
Wexford County Veteran Services and the Michigan Veterans Trust Fund. 
Recently a news article in the Cadillac News went out requesting community help with the 
WWII Veterans Memorial Wall at the courthouse. Commissioner Gary Taylor and the 
Wexford County Veterans Committee is following any leads to family and friends, gathering 
information and personal memorabilia to be displayed in the shadow boxes of those 
veterans killed in action from Wexford County. 

Respectfully, 
K�nt Myers, Director 

\) ,_ �}(T_,~ �----� &- < 

14



G.6.

BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS COMMITTEE AGENDA ITEM 

COMMITTEE: HR/Public Safety Committee 
FROM:  Administration 
FOR MEETING DATE: August 25, 2020 
SUBJECT: Employee Recognition Certificates 

SUMMARY OF ITEM TO BE PRESENTED: 

Wexford County would like to recognize employees for their service, per County policy 
B.13-0, at 10, 15, 20, 25, 30 and 35 years.  The following employee should be recognized at
a Board of Commissioners meeting for their service as follows:

EMPLOYEE NAME DEPARTMENT YEARS OF 
SERVICE 

Robert Kulpa Friend of the Court 10 Years 

Robert Kulpa began employment with Wexford County Friend of the Court on September 7, 
2010 as Custody Investigator/Mediator and continues to work in this position.  

RECOMMENDATION: 
Presentation of the Certificate of Appreciation to Mr. Kulpa at the next BOC meeting. 

15



G.7.
 

BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS COMMITTEE AGENDA ITEM 

COMMITTEE: HR/Public Safety Committee 
FROM:  Administration 
FOR MEETING DATE: August 25, 2020 
SUBJECT: Appointment to the Veterans Services Committee  

SUMMARY OF ITEM TO BE PRESENTED: 

With the recent notice of resignation of Ms. Susan Marcum from the Veterans Services 
Committee, a position will be available on the committee in October when she leaves.  

One application was received for the open position and has been sent to committee members 
for consideration.  

RECOMMENDATION: 

Review the application and make a recommendation to the full board. 

16



G.8.

BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS COMMITTEE AGENDA ITEM 

COMMITTEE: HR/Public Safety Committee 
FROM:  Administration 
FOR MEETING DATE: August 25, 2020 
SUBJECT: Flu Immunizations 

SUMMARY OF ITEM TO BE PRESENTED: 

This year, Cadillac Family Physicians is once again offering on-site flu immunizations for $30 
per person. This cost has not increased since 2014.  An employee’s health insurance will be 
billed. Cadillac Family Physicians has been providing this service since at least 2007.  

In previous years, the Board of Commissioners approved paying the entire cost for employees 
who are not covered by insurance. However, the County has not received an invoice from 
Cadillac Family Physician for flu vaccinations since 2012, which was $12.50; in 2011 the 
amount was $80.00. With changes in health care laws, many employees are now covered by 
some type of health plan. County full-time employees are covered by the county’s health plan 
or another health plan. Currently, there are 14 part-time employees working for the County 
that may or may not have coverage.  

In 2012, the funds were taken out of General Services Administration line item for employee 
physicals. A budget amendment would be needed to cover the costs for 2020, should there be 
any.  

Commissioners are also eligible to receive a flu vaccination on-site. 

RECOMMENDATION: 

A motion to recommend the BOC approve Cadillac Family Physicians to provide on-site flu 
immunizations and for the County to pay the full $30.00 for any Wexford County employee 
whose cost is not covered by insurance. 

17



Monthly Report 

Wexford County          As Of July 31, 2020
Medical Examiner’s Office 

Jan 
2020 

Feb 
2020 

Mar 
2020 

Apr 
2020 

May 
2020 

Jun 
2020 

Jul 
2020 

Aug 
2020 

Sept 
2020 

Oct 
2020 

Nov 
2020 

Dec 
2020 

FY 
2020 

% +/- from 
prev. year 

FY 
2019 

# Cases Investigated by MMMEG 16 7 9 7 12 19 13 83 43.7% 99 

Scene Investigations 10 4 5 6 9 15 12 61 

Cremation Permits 21 17 24 22 24 32 29 169 33.5% 217 

Manner of Death Homicide 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 1 0 

Suicide 1 1 0 0 0 1 0 3 -26.5% 7 

Accident 2 4 2 0 2 3 2 15 -14.3% 30 

Natural 13 2 7 7 10 13 9 61 71.4% 61 

Pending 0 0 0 0 0 1 2 3 1 

COVID-19 COVID Cases Reviewed 0 1 0 1 0 2 

Cases M.E. Tested in Field 1 0 0 0 1 

Confirmed Cases M.E. pronounced in Field 0 0 0 0 0 

Suspected Drug Related 0 1 0 0 1 3 1 6 -6.5% 11 

Special Cases UnClaimed Bodies 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 1 71.4% 1 

Unidentified Bodies 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

Exhumations 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

Ordered Toxicology 2 1 2 0 1 2 2 10 -18.4% 21 

Autopsy 1 0 0 0 1 4 0 6 105.7% 5 

Remaining Prepaid Autopsy 4/10 4/10 

Donations Whole Body 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 2 

Eyes/Cornea 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 2 

18



From: Kaspriak 
Subject: Medical Examiner Report July Wexford

Hi Janet and Mike,

Cases are up 43% and autopsies as well.  We can't be definite, but COVID lockdown/scare kept a lot 
of "natural" illnesses from being diagnosed and treated.  We hope this fall provides some relief from 
the increase of residents dying unexpectedly at home instead of receiving the care they need.  

Let me know if you have any questions.

Sincerely,

Lisa Kaspriak
MMMEG Administrator
Alpena-Clare-Crawford-Lake Mecosta-Montcalm-Oceana-Otsego-Newaygo-Wexford-Counties
231-510-6205

19




Monthly Report 


Wexford County                          As Of July 31, 2020 
Medical Examiner’s Office 


    


Jan 
2020 


Feb 
2020 


Mar 
2020 


Apr 
2020 


May 
2020 


Jun 
2020 


Jul 
2020 


Aug 
2020 


Sept 
2020 


Oct 
2020 


Nov 
2020 


Dec 
2020 


FY 
2020 


% +/- from 
prev. year 


FY 
2019 


                                  


# Cases Investigated by MMMEG 16 7 9 7 12 19 13           83 43.7% 99 


  Scene Investigations 10 4 5 6 9 15 12           61     


  Cremation Permits 21 17 24 22 24 32 29           169 33.5% 217 


                                  


Manner of Death Homicide 0 0 0 0 0 1 0           1   0 


  Suicide 1 1 0 0 0 1 0           3 -26.5% 7 


  Accident 2 4 2 0 2 3 2           15 -14.3% 30 


  Natural 13 2 7 7 10 13 9           61 71.4% 61 


  Pending  0 0 0 0 0 1 2           3   1 


                                  


COVID-19 COVID Cases Reviewed 0 1 0 1 0           2     


  Cases M.E. Tested in Field   1 0 0 0           1     


  Confirmed Cases M.E. pronounced in Field   0 0 0 0           0     


                                  


Suspected Drug Related 0 1 0 0 1 3 1           6 -6.5% 11 


                                  


Special Cases UnClaimed Bodies 0 0 0 0 0 1 0           1 71.4% 1 


  Unidentified Bodies 0 0 0 0 0 0 0           0   0 


  Exhumations 0 0 0 0 0 0 0           0   0 


                                  


Ordered Toxicology 2 1 2 0 1 2 2           10 -18.4% 21 


  Autopsy 1 0 0 0 1 4 0           6 105.7% 5 


Remaining Prepaid Autopsy 4/10 4/10                           


                                  


Donations Whole Body  1 0 0 0 0 0 0           1   2 


  Eyes/Cornea 1 0 0 0 0 0 0           1   2 






	E. HR PS Minutes
	G.1. Sheriff's Office Report
	G.2. North Flight Monthly Report
	Sheet1

	G.3. Emergency Management Report
	G.4. Dispatch Report
	G.5. Veterans Services Report
	G.6. Employee Recognition
	SUMMARY OF ITEM TO BE PRESENTED:

	G.7. Appointment to the Veterans Committee
	SUMMARY OF ITEM TO BE PRESENTED:

	G.8. Flu Shots
	SUMMARY OF ITEM TO BE PRESENTED:

	H.1. Correspondence from Lisa



